
 

1 of 8  cc09062007 

Heber City Corporation 
City Council Meeting 
September 06, 2007 

 
7:00 p.m. 

 
REGULAR MEETING  

 
The Council of Heber City, Wasatch County, Utah, met in Regular Meeting on 09/06/2007, in 
the City Council Chambers in Heber City, Utah. 
 
Present:    Mayor    David R. Phillips 
 
     Council Members  Terry Wm. Lange 
         Vaun Shelton 
         Shari Lazenby 
         Jeffery Bradshaw 
         Elizabeth Hokanson 
 
Also Present:    City Manager   Mark K. Anderson 
     City Recorder   Paulette Thurber 
     City Engineer   Bart Mumford 
     City Planner   Allen Fawcett 
     Chief of Police  Ed Rhoades 
 
Others Present: Tish Dahmen, Morris Carroll, G’anelle Carroll, Carol Anne Welch, Paul Shelton, 
Jennifer Shelton, Gavin Nebeker, John Nebeker, Kyle Baird, Brian Balls, Perry Rose, Ryan 
Pritchett, Brian Lee, Paul Kennard, Brad Graham, Irene Hastings, Bradley Baird, Kieth 
Rawlings, Allen Bluth, Nile Horner, Michael Thurber, Annie McMullen, Andy Bedingfield, Paul 
King, Travis Thomas, Mike Johnston, Carolyn Graham and other whose names were not legible.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance:  Mayor David Phillips 
Prayer:    Councilmember Elizabeth Hokanson 
 
Minutes:   March 01, 2007, Work Meeting 
    May 03, 2007 Regular Meeting 
    May 17, 2007, Regular Meeting 
    August 16, 2007, Work Meeting 
    August 16, 2007, Regular Meeting 
 
Councilmember Lazenby moved to approve the above listed minutes. Councilmember Hokanson 
made the second. The voting was unanimous in the affirmative.  
 

 
OPEN PERIOD FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
No comments were received. 
 

 
 



 

2 of 8  cc09062007 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Resolution 2007-09 - Re-Certification of the Heber City Justice Court for 2008 – 2011:  
 
Tish Dahman – Chamber of Commerce – Heritage Tourism Grant – Request for Funds 
(continued from 08/16/2007 meeting): 
 
Councilmember Hokanson moved to approve the Consent Agenda items. Councilmember 
Bradshaw made the second. No discussion. The voting was unanimous in the affirmative.  
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 
Gavin Nebeker – Eagle Scout Project – Tables, Benches, Swivel Grill, Bike Rack  - Valley 
Hills Cove Park (Tab 3):  Nebeker indicated he was a Life Scout and was interested in doing 
his Eagle Project at the Cove Park. He reviewed his project (three tables, three benches, a swivel 
grill and a bike rack), the cost ($3,673.00) and indicated the developer would contribute half the 
money for the project. Councilmember Hokanson expressed appreciation from the Council to the 
Scouts when they did projects which helped the City.  
 
Councilmember Hokanson moved to approve the project with the City contributing half the cost 
of the project. Anderson said there had been concern expressed with how well the retention pond 
percolated. It was indicated the area where Nebeker was proposing his project already had 
cement.  Councilmember Lazenby made the second.  The voting was unanimous in the 
affirmative. 
 
Morris Carroll – 151 West 700 South – Discussion relating to storm drain ditch/canal 
running through his property. (Follow-up of the 07052007 meeting) (Tab 4): Carroll 
explained the last time he was before the Council, he talked about why the ditch needed to be 
filled in. He said he had focused on the trash part of the issue and nothing else was really 
discussed. He indicated at that time the Council said they would study the issue. Carroll said 
since that meeting, the trash was still coming down. He indicated Steve Tozier had promised to 
take care of the problem.  He discussed the storm that came through since them and had taken 
pictures of his ditch again which showed it was full. He said if he hadn’t been there to clean out 
the trap, that water would have been in his basement. He suggested the ditch filled in would 
prevent a flood. He also could share a fence with his neighbor. Carroll said Tozier dug the ditch 
2 ½ feet deep and he recently measured and it is only 18” now which showed how much 
sediment had filled in. He questioned why he should have to maintain the ditch.  
 
Carol Ann Welch spoke in behalf of Carroll. Welch indicated she lived across the street now but 
that when she lived in the house Carroll lives in now, she was flooded twice. She said there was 
no problem before the City put in the culvert. Now she said the water goes down the window 
wells.  Welch’s biggest concern was that they were finding oil or gasoline down the ditch and 
she was watering her garden with that water. 
 
Anderson said Val Davis, UDOT, and Mumford had visited about the issue on Tuesday and 
Davis had indicated a willingness to maintain the culvert. He wanted the City to put in a grate 
that would control the debris. Discussion about where a grate would be placed. Carroll said 
Tozier had researched this and indicated everything from Wright Ford to McDonalds drained 



 

3 of 8  cc09062007 

into this ditch. It was felt that when the State put in the curb and gutter, they busted the concrete 
culvert. Carroll said if a person drove by, they could see how it was broken. 
 
Anderson said Mumford felt there was a possibility the storm drain could be re-established but 
he didn’t know what the cost would be.  Discussion about what direction the storm drain flowed. 
Mumford discussed the possibility of using an existing pipe and extending it to McDonalds. 
Mumford said he had met with Davis concerning trash from Main Street and they discussed a 
grate to keep the larger trash out of the irrigation system. He said Tozier was fabricating that 
grate. He said, too, that Davis would clean out once a year but if it was needed more than that, 
the City would have to do it. He said Wendys should be keeping their water on site. 
Councilmember Bradshaw talked about a field ditch south of Days that ran along the back side of 
lots on 850 South, turned on 200 West, went past his house, crossed the street and went to 300 
West. Carroll said he did not benefit from the pipe and he did not feel he should have to buy the 
pipe as Tozier said the City would put it in, but he (Carroll) had to pay for it. Councilmember 
Bradshaw said this was a fine example of urbanization messing up rural irrigation systems and 
that there were no easy answers. He said there were many ditches in the City and if one was 
covered, the City would be obligated to cover the other ones and it would bankrupt the City. He 
suggested the storm water run another route and felt that was a better solution. Councilmember 
Lange felt the City needed to open up some main arteries. The question was asked if the Council 
was interested to see what the cost would be. 
 
Councilmember  Lazenby moved to have this issue studied, to determine a cost, and to place this 
issue on a future agenda for further consideration. Councilmember Bradshaw made the second. 
No further discussion. The voting was unanimous in the affirmative. 
 
Paul Kennard – Requesting the City industrial property (38 ½ acres) located in the 
approximate area of the Airport be recognized as a “Sure Site” (Tab 5): Paul Kennard and 
Brad Braid addressed the Council on this issue. Kennard explained what a Sure Site was: 1) an 
interactive Internet mapping program that provided enhanced economic development and site 
selection services to the business community; 2) allowed users to search for available 
commercial buildings and sites as well as generate site-specific demographic and business 
analysis reports; and 3) sped up and simplified the process of finding the optimal location for a 
business by providing public access to a range of valuable information. He said it was a program 
he wanted to participate in but had no property to do so. He explained he and Anderson had 
talked about the City’s property by the airport for a possible Sure Site location. A PowerPoint 
presentation was made at this point. 
 
Kennard reviewed the criteria to determine a Sure Site which included all the things a potential 
buyer would be interested in.  He suggested the Internet had changed the way businesses look for 
property and that a lot of communities around the country had gone this way. He felt that without 
this kind of criteria and land, the County was not even in the game. Kennard referred to the 
information provided to the Council that had a web site and felt it was an impressive site. 
  
Baird said the real driver was that this Program was geared to manufacturing companies. He said 
when manufacturing companies needed to expand, they needed to do it immediately and they 
didn’t have that luxury to wait for rezoning, etc. He said a company could eliminate six to twelve 
months when they were relocating if some of the issues were already dealt with. Fawcett felt this 
Program was a tremendous asset to economic development. 
 



 

4 of 8  cc09062007 

Mayor Phillips asked if this parcel was the only one they were interested in. Kennard said they 
had identified other areas. Mayor Phillips asked if the Council was interested in getting our 
property into a pool and what they were willing to put into it. Councilmembers Shelton, 
Hokanson, Lange and Bradshaw all felt favorably towards this Program. Councilmember 
Bradshaw especially felt this would be beneficial to the City. Mayor Phillips asked if the Council 
was interested in looking at any other City land. There seemed to be some interest in that. Mayor 
Phillips suggested businesses would have to be compatible with the area and the airport. Kennard 
said he had inquiries from a plumbing supply company and an energy drink company that had 
some interest in Heber. He felt either would be a clean industry and beneficial to Heber. Mayor 
Phillips wanted to get the Planning Commission involved in this idea and wanted the next step to 
be involvement with the Planning Commission. Anderson indicated the property was zoned 
industrial. Discussion that Kennard had applied for grant funds for master planning the area. He 
questioned if we wanted to make this into smaller lots or keep it whole. Mayor Phillips agreed 
the vision and master plan was important upfront. Baird said aerospace companies were also  
interested in coming to Utah and if the City had a space they wanted to target to the aerospace 
community, they needed to get listed as a Sure Site. Baird felt the area should be left whole and 
if so the City would generate some interest. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
Activa Plaza and Wasatch County request Condominiumization of the former Bear Creek 
Country Kitchens Facility for a County-owned recreation center and a privately owned 
center to house businesses complimentary to the use of the recreation center (Tab 6): Brain 
Lee said that since the last meeting with the City Council, they had received a unanimous, 
favorable recommendation from the Planning Commission on commercial development and 
condominimazation. He indicated Corbin Gordon had worked with the County and City 
attorneys to develop bylaws and a declaration policy. He said their engineering department had 
been working on egress and ingress and, to his knowledge, all open issues had been resolved.  
Lee indicated a new building would replace the old Cloyes building with an estimated site 
improvement cost of approximately four million dollars. He indicated there had been some issues 
brought up, especially concern with future use. He said, though, they were only asking for 
condominimazation approval tonight and that condominimazation did not take away from the 
City’s right for future requests.  Mayor Phillips summarized the request was for 
condominimazation to break unit one for the County to own, unit three would be privately 
owned, they were requesting final approval and felt the request would benefit the business park 
and neighborhood. Lee felt that the tax revenue for the City would be a benefit and personally 
believed a quality of life that was better for the community would be the result.  
 
Councilmember Shelton asked about future use for buildings two and four and if that was 
included in this request. Lee said no. He explained that legal council clarified 
condominimazation creates a legal separation of the four units. Councilmember Shelton 
questioned if the Council allowed units one and three to condominimize, would that still allow 
the project to move forward. Brian Balls, Summit Engineering, talked about the plat creating 
four units of ownership. He said any building had to come back to the Council for approval. It 
was indicated Corbin Gordon had been working the last month with people from the County, 
including Scott Sweat from the Wasatch County Attorneys’ office. He said the County was 
working to purchase units one and two.  
 
Councilmember Shelton asked about the 8/23 Planning Commission meeting where there was 
discussion about fencing and about the property to the west being available for future purchase. 



 

5 of 8  cc09062007 

He said the property to the west was his property and it was not available. Lee apologized and 
said it was not their intent to seize the Shelton’s property and he did not want to make enemies. 
Councilmember Shelton said Wasatch County could attempt condemnation of his property and in 
the information provided that evening there was a large section about eminent domain.  Lee said 
he could not speak for the County, but it was not their desire to do anything like that. He 
reiterated that the way this project was designed, they would have to go to the Planning 
Commission and to the City Council with each separate request. 
 
Paul Shelton, a neighbor in the area, thought the request tonight was for units one and three. Now 
he understood that it was a plan for one, two, three and four. Paul Shelton wanted to know about 
the required parking for all owners. Lee discussed that and indicated unit two was the parking for 
the County but that was a future issue and “right now we are not approving any building on two 
and four”. He said they were identifying ownership right now and for the future, if a building 
was proposed on those two units, they would have to come back for approval. Mayor Phillips 
read from the Declaration about units two and four and the parking having to be replaced or 
provided if buildings were placed on those units. 
 
Paul Shelton said it appeared the private sector was consuming the parking so the next entity to 
need parking would be Wasatch County and when they need parking, his property was the most 
convenient. Lee said there was sufficient parking for units one, two and three and that it was unit 
four that had no parking. Paul Shelton said an aquatics center was wanted and needed. “Then 
where is the parking”, he asked. Lee said there were five other options. Paul Shelton said he 
wanted an agreement in writing from Wasatch County about not taking his property. It was 
indicated it was not legal to do an agreement like that. Lee apologized that they had even 
suggested the Shelton property was available. Lee said there was no desire to harm a property 
owner. 
  
Brain Balls, Summit Engineering, said it was not necessary to contain parking on site and there 
were 100 additional stalls that could be developed. He discussed the parking at the rodeo 
grounds, some street parking and other ways parking could be created that would be just as 
assessable as the Shelton property.  
 
Corbin Gordon addressed the condemnation issue by saying this was a “unique animal” because 
it combined private and public uses. He said if condemnation was tried, it might be thought the 
private sector was getting more value or benefit. He said he just did not think that would happen.  
 
Paul Shelton talked about the fence saying it seemed to him this was “maximum build out” and 
he wanted “maximum fence”—8’. It was discussed the fence could go 8’ because this was an 
industrial area. Brian Lee again apologized for miscommunication. He said the people he was 
working with built 6’ fences and that the first time he heard anything about an 8’ fence was in 
Planning Commission. He suggested, looking at the design of the property, there was a 13’ 
height difference from one end to the other. He felt a 6’ fence was accommodating the privacy 
issue. He said they were not building a prison and felt an 8’ fence might not be aesthetically 
pleasing. He said they were willing to discuss the issue.  Discussion as to what point the fence 
would be discussed in the planning process.  Brain Balls talked about and drew on the white 
board the existing topography of the property and explained the grade of (lows and highs) of the 
asphalt in the project. 
 



 

6 of 8  cc09062007 

Councilmember Lazenby moved to approve the plat with the fence issues being workout out 
during the planning process. Councilmember Hokanson made the second. No further discussion.  
The voting was unanimous in the affirmative. 
 
Paul King/TJ Thomas request subdivision final approval for Paul King Subdivision Plat A 
located at approximately 250 South 550 East (Tab 7): Mayor Phillips indicated the Planning 
Commission had recommended approval. King indicated the six conditions of approval placed 
by the Planning Commission had already been accomplished. 1) Comply with State Engineer’s 
approval for stream modification; 2) Provide addresses for the lots on the plat; 3) Provide an 
updated title report for all lands proposed to be subdivided; 4) Provide tax clearance from 
County Assessor’s office; 5) Provide and record a record of survey map; and 6) Turn over 
appropriate water shares to the City for the development. 
 
Councilmember Bradshaw moved to grant final subdivision approval for the Paul King 
Subdivision Plat A based upon the conditions of the Planning Commission (listed above) being 
met and providing additional water rights as determined by the City Engineer. Councilmember 
Lange made the second. The voting was unanimous in the affirmative. 
 
Paul King/TJ Thomas request final approval for small lot subdivision for the Paul King 
Subdivision Plat B located at approximately 520 East 200 South (Tab 8): Mayor Phillips 
reviewed the Planning Commission recommendation as well as the Board of Adjustment 
recommendation which were both favorable to the request.  There were no comments from the 
Council. 
 
Councilmember Hokanson moved to grant approval for the Paul King Subdivision Plat B located 
at approximately 520 East 200 South with the stipulations of the Planning Commission being 
met (1) consistent with 18.64 RA-2 and 18.12.200; 2) contingent upon approval and recordation 
of Lot 19 plat amendment to Broadhead Estates subdivision; 3) construction of sidewalk along 
Lot 1; 4) deed restriction for curb and asphalt on Lot 1; 5) dedication of an easement along the 
Lake Creek Channel along Lot 2; 6) dedication of a portion of a water right for the new lots; 7) 
compliance with the State Engineer’s approval for changes to the Lake Creek Channel for the 
new lots; and 8) animals not being permitted on Lot 1) and additional water shares being turned 
over to the City as determined by the City Engineer. Councilmember Lange made the second. 
The voting was unanimous in the affirmative. 
 
Ryan Fenton – Request final approval for a Lot Split on the LaLyre property located at 
approximately the northeast corner of the intersection of 200 South and 300 West (Tab 9): 
Mayor Phillips reviewed the Planning Commission recommendation which was a unanimous 
vote in favor of the request.  
 
Councilmember Bradshaw moved to approve a lot split on the LaLyre property located at 
approximately the northeast corner of the intersection of 200 South and 300 West. 
Councilmember Hokanson made the second. No further discussion. Voting AYE: Terry Wm. 
Lange, Vaun Shelton, Jeffery Bradshaw and Elizabeth Hokanson. Voting NAY: Shari Lazenby. 
 
Councilmember Lange indicated in the last meeting there had been discussion about the Cottage 
Home Ordinance being stretched. He said he wanted to meet with the Planning Commission. 
Fawcett indicated the Planning Commission had lengthy discussion on this issue last meeting. He 
said he, Kohler, and staff were concerned with the product they were getting. He said the 
Planning Commission did not want to abolish the Ordinance but wanted to give staff two or three 



 

7 of 8  cc09062007 

months to make some changes to the Code.  He said staff felt part of the problem was not having  
a good designed product.  He suggested the Council consider a moratorium. 
 
Mayor Phillips discussed the fact the City had an ordinance that allowed Cottage Homes, but yet 
staff got frustrated when they were built. However, when the City had people apply under the 
ordinance, they have to be considered. Councilmember Hokanson indicated she wanted to 
consider a moratorium and wanted to look at and evaluate the Code. She suggested working with 
the Affordable Housing Board to create an ordinance that could be deed restricted and designated 
for affordable housing. She felt that unless there could be a way found for them to be affordable, 
they were not serving the community any more. She suggested the Code, as written, was creating 
a lot of problems. 
 
Councilmember Bradshaw said he did not have as much heartburn with this as the rest. He said 
he had driven by some of the homes that had been approved and some were better looking than 
the surrounding homes. He said. too, he had been involved in a lot of discussion and he was not 
so sure he would want to change the current Code.  
 
Councilmember Lange questioned what the intent really was. He again said he wanted to get 
together with the Planning Commission, express concern, and talk about the current ordinance. 
He was in favor of a moratorium. 
 
Councilmember Lazenby wanted a moratorium. She indicated she had had a lot of complaints. 
She wanted to make sure when the Code was changed, it would be something that could be lived 
with. 
 
Mayor Phillips suggested when the Planning Commission looked at future landuse, they needed 
to look at the R-3 Zone because there wasn’t much left. He talked about the Russ Watts 
development and how that was a good thing for the Valley. He felt there should be another zone 
or more land should be designated R-3.  Councilmember Lazenby agreed and questioned how 
the City could think about bringing in businesses if there was no affordable housing in the area. 
Anderson asked if the Council wanted a pending ordinance to discuss a moratorium. They 
indicated yes on the next agenda. 
 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
Ordinance 2007-33 – An Ordinance Amending Section 17.16.010(B), Section 17.16.010(D), 
Section 17.16.010(F), Section 17.48.040(A) and Section 18.61.060 of the Heber City 
Municipal Code relating to Submission Periods for Concept, Preliminary and final 
Development Approvals (Tab 10): Councilmember Lazenby moved to approve Ordinance 
2007-33 – an Ordinance Amending Section 17.16.010(B), Section 17.16.010(D), Section 
17.16.010(F), Section 17.48.040(A) and Section 18.61.060 of the Heber City Municipal Code 
relating to submission periods for Concept, Preliminary and Final Development Approvals. 
Councilmember Bradshaw made the second.  No discussion. Voting AYE: Terry Wm. Lange, 
Vaun Shelton, Shari Lazenby, Jeffery Bradshaw and Elizabeth Hokanson. 
 
Resolution 2007- 10 – Amendment of Heber City Standard Specifications – Section 16530 – 
Residential Street Lighting (Tab 11): Mayor Phillips reviewed Fawcett’s memo. Fawcett then 
reviewed the change and said it matched the downtown lights except single bulb and height.  He 
felt this would be a smart thing to approve as the fixtures would match and replacement parts 
would be easily gotten. A handout was presented showing the proposed light changes. Mike 



 

8 of 8  cc09062007 

Thurber asked if these were shielded so light went down and not up. Fawcett said yes. Mike 
Johnston asked about the back cut off for houses.  Mumford said these lights had the back shield 
as well as the top shield.  
 
Councilmember Bradshaw moved to approve Resolution 2007-10, an Amendment of the Heber 
City Standard Specifications – Section 16530 – Residential Street Lighting. Councilmember 
Lange made the second. There was no further discussion. Voting AYE: Terry Wm. Lange, Vaun 
Shelton, Shari Lazenby, Jeffery Bradshaw and Elizabeth Hokanson. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
Wasatch City/County Health Department – 4th Tuesday –Lazenby 
Heber Light and Power – 4th Wednesday – Phillips, Lange, Shelton 
Heber City Planning Commission – 4th Thursday - Bradshaw 
Historic Preservation - Lazenby 
 
No reports were given. 
 
 
As there was no additional business, the September 6, 2007, regular meeting of the Heber City 
Council adjourned at 9:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
              
       Paulette Thurber, City Recorder 
 
 


